WATERVIEW NORTH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1&2 ‘%5"% fsi}M
Special Board Meeting DISTRICT MANAGERS
Monday, January 27, 2025, at 10:00 AM

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Boards of Directors of Waterview North Metropolitan District
Nos. 1 & 2, City of Colorado Springs, County of El Paso, State of Colorado, will hold a special meeting at
10:00 AM on January 27, 2025, remotely at:

Via tele/videoconference
https://video.cloudoffice.avaya.com/join/724993233
United States: +1 (213) 463-4500
_Access Code: 724993233

b=

Board of Director Title Term

P.A. Koscielski President May 2027

Ray O’Sullivan Secretary May 2027

Charles Cothern Treasurer May 2027

Heath Herber Assistant Secretary May 2025

Vacant - May 2025
AGENDA

Call to order
Declaration of Quorum/Director Qualifications/Disclosure Matters
Approval of Agenda

Public Comment — Members of the public may express their views to the Boards on matters that
affect the Districts. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes

Consent agenda - The items listed below are a group of items to be acted on with a single motion
and vote by the Board. An item may be removed from the consent agenda and placed on the regular
agenda by any Board member. Items on the consent agenda are then voted on by a single motion,
second, and vote by the Board.

a. Approve Minutes from December 20, 2024, Joint Special Meetings (enclosed)
b. Approve Payables (enclosed)
Legal Matters

a. Review and consider approval of Infrastructure Acquisition and Reimbursement Agreement
with Waterview Commercial Developers Inc.

Financial Matters

Other Businesses

WSDM - District Managers
614 N. Tejon St., Colorado Springs, CO 80903  (719) 447-1777 www.wsdistricts.co


https://video.cloudoffice.avaya.com/join/724993233
tel:+16467493122,,547622885

2
W \\\\\&\\
\ %

7
777Kk

hy,
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\

"
“y
Z,
\\\\\\\n. \\\\

DISTRICT MANAGERS




DISTRICT MANAGERS

MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
WATERVIEW NORTH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1 & 2
HELD DECEMBER 20, 2024 AT 9:00 AM

Pursuant to posted notice, the joint special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Waterview North
Metropolitan District Nos. 1 & 2 was held on Monday, December 20, 2024, at 9:00 a.m., virtually via
video teleconference.

ATTENDANCE
In attendance were Directors:
P.A. Koscielski, President
Raymond O’Sullivan, Secretary
Charles Cothern, Treasurer
Heath Herber, Assistant Secretary

Also in attendance were:

Jak Pattamasaevi, WSDM

Erin Stutz, Esq. White Bear Ankele
Barrett Marrocco, Connextion Group

1. Call to Order: Mr. Pattamasaevi called the meeting to order at 9:11 a.m.

2. Declaration of Quorum/Director Qualifications/Disclosure Matters: Mr. Pattamasaevi declared a
quorum was present and confirmed that the director qualifications and filings of disclosures were
made previously. Erin Stuz from legal counsel advised that conflicts were filed.

3. Approval of Agenda: After review, President Koscielski moved to approve the Agenda as presented,
seconded by Director Cothern. Motion passed unanimously.

4. Public Comment: There was no public in attendance.
5. Consent Agenda:

a. Approve Minutes from December 2, 2024, Joint Special Meeting: Mr. Pattamasaevi presented
the Minutes from December 2, 2024.
b. Approve Payables: Mr. Pattamasaevi presented the payables.

After review, President Koscielski moved to both approve the approve the minutes from
December 2, 2024 Joint Special Meeting and the payables as presented, seconded by Director
Cothern. Motion passed unanimously.

6. Legal Matters
a. Consider Adoption of Resolution Certifying Costs: Mr. Pattamasaevi presented the
resolution certifying costs and clarified they were for the engineering certification and the
account of certification of $1,566,720.37. Ms. Stutz advised the funds will go into the

WSDM District Managers
614 N. Tejon St., Colorado Springs, CO 80903 (719) 447-1777 ~ www.wsdistricts.co


http://www.wsdistricts.co/

District’s funds to pay CPR entitlements. After discussion, Director O’Sullivan moved to
adopt the resolution certifying costs as presented, seconded by Director Cothern. Motion
passed unanimously.

7. Financial Matters: There were no financial matters.

Other Business: There was no other business.

9. Adjourn: President Koscielski moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Director Cothern. Motion
passed unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 9:19 a.m.

>

Approved,

Officer of the District

WSDM District Managers
614 N. Tejon St., Colorado Springs, CO 80903 (719) 447-1777 ~ www.wsdistricts.co


http://www.wsdistricts.co/

2
W \\\\\&\\
\ %

7
777Kk

hy,
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\

"
“y
Z,
\\\\\\\n. \\\\

DISTRICT MANAGERS




Waterview North Metropolitan District

PAYMENT REQUEST

1/24/2025
GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT
Company Invoice Date Amount Comments

White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron 28542 12/31/2024 $ 77,425.67 |less $75,000 paid at closing
The Connextion Group 002-1224 1/2/2025 $ 7,568.75
WSDM District Managers 589 12/31/2024 $ - |Annual Capped

TOTAL 84,994.42
TOTAL FOR ALL FUNDS $ 84,994.42 , President
Eastern Colorado Bank Balance 12/16/24 $ 2,851.20
Current & Unpaid Payables less $75,000 $ (24,676.51)
Needed to Fund Payables $ (21,825.31)




2
W \\\\\&\\
\ %

7
777Kk

hy,
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\

"
“y
Z,
\\\\\\\n. \\\\

DISTRICT MANAGERS




INFRASTRUCTURE ACQUISITION
AND

REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

WATERVIEW NORTH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO.

AND

WATERVIEW COMMERCIAL DEVELOPERS, INC.

DATED JANUARY 27, 2025



Table of Contents

ARTICLE I: PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT .....coiiiiiiiiieitee et 5
I.1  PurpoSe Of AGIEEmMENt.......cc.ceeviiiiiiieeiiie et et etee et e e e e sae e e eeesaeeesreesaaeesnsaeennseeas 5
ARTICLE II: DEFINITION ....coiiiiiiiiiniiieieeeeee sttt sttt sttt sttt sbe s 5
B B B 1S 10115 101 SO O O USROS RU PRSI 5
ARTICLE III: APPLICATION FOR ACCEPTANCE/REVIEW PROCEDURES...................... 8
3.1.  Application for Acceptance of District Eligible CoOstS.........ccccevieniiniinienieiinieneeicnne 8
3.2. Common Application Review Procedures - Eligible Public Infrastructure Costs............ 8
3.3.  Additional Application Review Procedures - District Public Infrastructure.................... 9
3.4. Application Review Procedures - Eligible Capital Services Costs..........cccceerveeriiennnnnns 10
3.5 Documentary Requirements in Exhibit Schedules............ccccooovieiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee 10
ARTICLE IV: DISTRICT ACCEPTANCE .....ooiiiiiieiieteeseee et 10
4.1. District Acceptance ReSOIUtION........c.coviiiiiiiiiiiiieie et 10
4.2 Reimbursement Subject to Availability of Funds. ..........ccoeeiiiiiiiinniiiiieieee, 11
ARTICLE V: PAYMENT OF CERTIFIED DISTRICT ELIGIBLE COSTS ......ccccecevieienne. 11
5.1.  Payment of Certified District Eligible CostS.........ccceevviiiiiiriiieiienieeieeieeiee e 11
5.2 Limitation on Payment Source for Dedicated Improvements Not Conditionally
YN o) o <1« A USSR 11
5.3. Interest Prior to Issuance of Reimbursement Obligations.............ccceeeevieeriienieeniiennneans 11
5.4. Issuance of Reimbursement Obligations...........cccccvveeriiieniieeniieeiee e e 12
ARTICLE VI: TERMINATION.....ccottiiiieiteieeitee ettt ettt see e 13
6.1. Termination of Obligation to ReImMbUISE. ..........c.cccuiiiiieiiiiniieiiecieeeeee e 13
ARTICLE VII: MISCELLANEOQOUS......cutitiieitee ettt 13
7.1.  Annual Appropriation/No Multiple Fiscal Year Financial Obligation .......................... 12
7.2, Default/REMEAICS ...c..eouviriiiiieiieiiieieeiestete ettt sttt ettt et 12
7.3.  Time Is of the Essence/Modification of Performance Dates...........cccccoeoeeiiiniiinnnicns 12
T4, INAEMNITICALION ..eoutiiiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt ettt e st e bt e sateebeesaeeens 13
7.5, INOLICES. ¢ttt ettt ettt et h et et b et e ht e bt et e at e bbbt e bt et eatenaeenees 13
7.6, AMENAIMENTS. .....eiiitiiiiiiiieet ettt ettt e et e et e et esateebeesabeebeesabeebeesaeeans 13
T 7. SEVEIADIIILY . .eeiiiiii ittt et e et e e et e e et e e et e e e ab e e e aa e e enneeeenraeenanes 13
7.8, GOVErNING LaAW/VEINUE ......c.eeeiuiiiiiiiieeiieeie ettt ettt et see et e saeeaeesateebeesaneenseesnseens 13
A T (O I A TS P 1101 <) o SRR 14

T10. AULROTIEY o eovveeoeeeeeeeeeee oo seeeeeeseeeeeseeeeeseeeeeeseseeees e eees s eees e eeeseeseeesseeeessseeees e 14



7.11.
7.12.
7.13.
7.14.
7.15.
7.16.
7.17.
7.18.

ENtire AGIEEMENT......ccccuviieiiiieeiiie ettt et e ae e e ae e e ta e e e e e e saaeesnsaeesaseees 14
INUTEMENL ...ttt ettt 14
Le@al EXISTEICE. ....eeiuiieiieeiiieiieeiie ettt ettt ettt et e e et e e aaeebeeseaeenseesaseenseessseenseas 14
Governmental IMMUNIEY........ccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiece e re e s e saee e 14
Negotiated PrOVISIONS......ccoiiiiiieiieeiieiie ettt ettt ettt et te bt e e beesaeenseenseeenns 14
Parties Interested /No Third-Party Beneficiaries.........ccccoevieriiieniinieenieniieiieeieenen, 14
Electronic Storage and EXECUtION........ccieviiiiieiiiieiiieciee et 15
Counterpart EXECULION .......ceiviiiiieiieeiie ettt ettt ettt et et sbe et esaaeeseeeaneens 15
EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT A - Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs

Dedicated Public Infrastructure

EXHIBIT B — Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs

District Public Infrastructure

EXHIBIT C - Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs

2332.4700;

Capital Services Costs



INFRASTRUCTURE ACQUISITION
AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT

This INFRASTRUCTURE ACQUISITION AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT
(the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the 27" day of January, 2025, by and between
WATERVIEW NORTH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO.  , a quasi-municipal corporation
and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), and WATERVIEW
COMMERCIAL DEVELOPERS, INC., a Colorado corporation (“WCD?”).

RECITALS

A. The District was organized to provide Public Infrastructure for the Project as
authorized in the Special District Act and the Service Plan for the District.

B. In accordance with the Special District Act and the Service Plan, the District has
the power to manage, control, and supervise the affairs of the District, including the acquisition,
financing, construction, and installation of Public Infrastructure.

C. WCD has incurred or may in the future incur District Eligible Costs, which may
consist of Eligible Public Infrastructure Costs, Eligible Capital Service Costs, or both.

D. The Parties desire to establish the terms and conditions for the reimbursement of
District Eligible Costs that become Certified District Eligible Costs, and to provide for the
conveyance of Public Infrastructure consisting of District Public Infrastructure to the District.

E. The District does not intend to direct the design or construction of any Public
Infrastructure by way of this Agreement.

F. The Parties do not intend hereby to enter into a public works contract as defined in
§ 24-91-103.5(1)(b), C.R.S.

G. The Parties do not intend hereby to enter into a contract for work or materials in
accordance with § 32-1-1001(1)(d)(I), C.R.S.

H. Pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(d)(I), C.R.S., the District is permitted to enter into
contracts and agreements affecting the affairs of the District, and the Board has determined that
the best interests of the District, property owners within the District, and the public, are served by
entering into this Agreement, and this Agreement is in furtherance of the purposes for which the
District was established.

L The Parties have authorized their respective officers or representatives to execute
this Agreement and to take all other actions necessary and desirable to effectuate the purposes of
this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth
in this Agreement, the Parties agree as follows:

2332.4700; 3



COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

ARTICLE 1
PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

1.1 Purpose of Agreement. This Agreement establishes the terms and conditions for
the reimbursement of Certified District Eligible Costs by the District, and the terms and conditions
for the acquisition of District Public Infrastructure.

ARTICLE 2
DEFINITIONS

2.1 Definitions. In this Agreement, unless a different meaning clearly appears from
the context, capitalized terms mean:

Accountant’s Cost Certification: A written certification issued by the District
Accountant following review of an Engineer’s Cost Certification, invoices, and other material
presented to substantiate Eligible Public Infrastructure Costs, in form and substance reasonably
acceptable to the District, declaring the total amount of Eligible Public Infrastructure Costs
proposed for reimbursement.

Accountant’s Service Cost Certification: A written certification issued by the District
Accountant following review of invoices, and other material presented to substantiate the Eligible
Capital Services Costs, in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the District, declaring the
total amount of Eligible Capital Services Costs proposed for reimbursement.

Agreement: This Infrastructure Acquisition and Reimbursement Agreement between the
Parties dated February 1, 2024.

Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs/Application: An application by
WCD for reimbursement of Eligible Public Infrastructure Costs or Eligible Capital Services Costs,
in the form attached to this Agreement as Exhibits A, B, and C.

Application Review Procedures: Those requirements set forth in Article 3 hereof by
which an Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs is evaluated for sufficiency as a
condition to adoption of a District Acceptance Resolution.

Board: The duly elected or appointed Board of Directors of the District.

Bonds: Bonds, notes or other multiple fiscal year financial obligations issued by the
District with respect to which proceeds are available for the payment of Certified District Eligible
Costs.

Certified District Eligible Costs: District Eligible Costs that have been accepted by the
District through adoption of a District Acceptance Resolution.

2332.4700; 4



Component Unit(s): portions of Public Infrastructure that are substantially complete and
fit for their intended purposes, whether yet placed in service.

Construction Drawings: Drawings prepared by a licensed and registered engineer and
approved by the applicable governmental entity, by which Public Infrastructure has been built.

Dedicated Public Infrastructure: Public Infrastructure that is to be dedicated to another
governmental entity for public use.

Design Engineer’s Certification: A certification in form and substance reasonably
acceptable to the District from an engineer or other appropriate design professional, licensed in
Colorado and approved by the District, stating that (1) the Public Infrastructure, or applicable
Component Unit thereof, has been inspected for compliance with approved designs, plans and
construction standards, and, if applicable, Construction Drawings; (2) that the Public
Infrastructure, or applicable Component Unit thereof, has been substantially constructed in
accordance with the approved designs, plans and construction standards, and, if applicable,
Construction Drawings; and (3) the Public Infrastructure is fit for its intended purpose.

District Acceptance Resolution: A resolution adopted by the Board of the District
following satisfactory completion of the Application Review Procedures.

District Accountant: An accountant licensed to practice in the State of Colorado that has
been engaged by the District.

District Eligible Costs: Collectively, the Eligible Public Infrastructure Costs and the Eligible
Capital Services Costs.

District Engineer: An engineer licensed to practice in the State of Colorado that has been
engaged by the District.

District Public Infrastructure: Public Infrastructure that is intended to be owned and
operated by the District.

District Inspection Report: A report issued by the District Engineer following an
Inspection in connection with District Public Infrastructure, addressing those matters set forth
Section 3.3 hereof.

District: Waterview North Metropolitan District No. .
Eligible Public Infrastructure Costs: Costs related to the acquisition, financing,
planning, design, construction, and installation of Public Infrastructure that may be lawfully

funded by the District under the Special District Act and the Service Plan, and which may represent
Dedicated Public Infrastructure and/or District Public Infrastructure.

2332.4700; 5



Eligible Capital Services Costs: Costs of certain services and/or work directly related to the
ability of the District to provide and/or the provision of Public Infrastructure, including but not limited
to: District organizational costs, engineering, architectural, surveying, construction planning, and
related legal, accounting, and other professional services.

Engineer’s Cost Certification: A written report certifying that, in the opinion of the
District Engineer, the cost of the Public Infrastructure is reasonable considering the type of Public
Infrastructure being reviewed.

Inspection: With respect to District Public Infrastructure, an inspection conducted by the
District Engineer and WCD to ascertain the completion of such Public Infrastructure and/or
whether corrective work is required prior to acceptance by the District.

Maximum Repayment Term: Shall mean 20 years from the date of this Agreement for
Certified District Eligible Costs not converted to Reimbursement Obligations, or such lesser period
as may be established in the Service Plan.

MMD AAA Index: The Municipal Market Data “AAA” General Obligation Yield Curve,
30-Year constant maturity, published by Refinitiv at www.tm3.com, or successor index if replaced.

MMD Interest Rate: The interest rate based on the MMD AAA Index plus 400 basis
points.

Notices: Shall mean those forms of notice authorized by Section 7.5 hereof.

Party or Parties: Party refers to the District or WCD, individually; Parties refers to the
District and WCD, collectively.

Project: The proposed development described generally in the Service Plan, for which the
District is authorized to furnish Public Infrastructure.

Public Infrastructure: The improvements and associated services authorized under the
Service Plan and the Special District Act, whether to be dedicated to another governmental entity
or to be acquired by the District, and which may include Dedicated Public Infrastructure, District
Public Infrastructure and/or Component Units.

Registered Municipal Advisor: A municipal advisor, as defined in Section 15B of the
federal “Securities Exchange Act of 1934,” that is registered with the securities and exchange
commission under Section 15B of the federal “Securities Exchange Act of 1934.”

Reimbursement Obligation(s): One or more notes, bonds, or other multiple fiscal year
financial obligations issued at the request of WCD in the amount of Certified District Eligible

Costs as approved from time to time.

RMA Rate: The interest rate derived from an interest rate analysis performed by a
Registered Municipal Advisor.

2332.4700; 6


https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/M84fCQWj8NfZmLhPOYez?domain=tm3.com

Service Plan: The Service Plan for the District as approved by the City of Colorado

Springs on September 26, 2023.

Special District Act: Part 1 of Article of Title 32, Colorado Revised Statutes, as amended

from time to time.

Third-Party Accounting Firm: An accounting firm mutually selected by the Parties to

perform certain functions as set forth in Section 3.2.a.

Third-Party Engineering Firm: An engineering firm mutually selected by the Parties to

perform certain functions as set forth in Sections 3.2.b and 3.3.

3.1.

WCD: Waterview Commercial Developers, Inc., a Colorado corporation.

ARTICLE 3
APPLICATION FOR ACCEPTANCE/REVIEW PROCEDURES

Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs. WCD will initiate a

request for the District’s acceptance of District Eligible Costs by submitting the following, as
applicable:

Costs.

a. For Dedicated Public Infrastructure, a completed ‘“Application for
Acceptance of District Eligible Costs - Dedicated Public Infrastructure” attached hereto as
Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference.

b. For District Public Infrastructure, a completed “Application for Acceptance
of District Eligible Costs - District Public Infrastructure” attached hereto as Exhibit B and
incorporated herein by this reference.

c. For Eligible Capital Services Costs, a completed “Application for
Acceptance of District Eligible Costs - Capital Services Costs” attached hereto as Exhibit
C and incorporated herein by this reference.

d. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3.1.a, no Application for Acceptance
of District Eligible Costs — Dedicated Public Infrastructure may be submitted to the extent
such Application includes costs for Dedicated Public Infrastructure that has not received
conditional acceptance from the applicable governmental entity, unless (i) the District has
Bond proceeds available to fund the full amount to be requested, and (ii) the District agrees
to accept such Application. In such event, the provisions of Section 3.3 regarding the
conduct of an inspection and issuance of an Inspection Report shall apply.

3.2.  Common Application Review Procedures - Eligible Public Infrastructure
After receipt of a complete Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs as

provided in Subsections 3.1.a or 3.1.b above, the District shall promptly direct the following to

occur:

2332.4700; 7



a. The District shall direct the District Engineer to review the Application for
Acceptance of District Eligible Costs to substantiate the District Eligible Costs associated
with the Public Infrastructure proposed for reimbursement for the purpose of issuing an
Engineer’s Cost Certification. Such Engineer’s Cost Certification shall be issued promptly
upon completion of the Engineer’s review. WCD may dispute the conclusions set forth in
the Engineer’s Cost Certification, and the Parties shall attempt to resolve any such disputes
in good faith, within 30 days of issuance thereof. In the event the Parties are not able to
resolve such disputes within 30 days of the date of the Engineer’s Cost Certification, the
Parties shall submit the dispute to a Third-Party Engineering Firm, whose findings shall be
binding on the Parties. The fees and expenses of the Third-Party Engineering Firm shall be
split equally between the Parties, unless otherwise agreed.

b. Upon receipt of the Engineer’s Cost Certification, the District shall direct
the District Accountant to review the Engineer’s Cost Certification and Application for
Acceptance of District Eligible Costs and issue an Accountant’s Cost Certification. WCD
may dispute the conclusions set forth in the Accountant’s Cost Certification, and the Parties
shall attempt to resolve any such dispute in good faith. In the event the Parties are not able
to resolve such disputes within 30 days of the date of the Accountant’s Cost Certification,
the Parties shall submit the dispute to a Third-Party Accounting Firm, whose findings shall
be binding on the Parties. The fees and expenses of the Third-Party Accounting Firm shall
be split equally between the Parties.

3.3. Additional Application Review Procedures - District Public Infrastructure. In
addition to the requirements set forth in Section 3.2, upon receipt of an Application for Acceptance
of District Eligible Costs — District Public Infrastructure, the District shall promptly direct the
following to occur:

a. The District Engineer, or other appropriate consultant engaged by the
District according to the nature of the work being inspected, and WCD, or its
representative, shall jointly conduct an Inspection of the Public Infrastructure within 30
days of the submission of a complete Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs
— District Public Infrastructure;

b. Within 14 days after the Inspection, the District Engineer shall issue a
District Inspection Report that addresses the following:

1. whether the Public Infrastructure has been constructed in substantial
accordance with the Construction Drawings;

1i. whether the Public Infrastructure is fit for its intended purpose; and

1ii. whether any corrective work is necessary before declaring
satisfaction of subsections (i) and (ii), in which case the District Inspection Report
will include a punch list of such items.

C. If the District Inspection Report identifies any necessary corrective work,
WCD shall be responsible for correcting such work listed on the punch list to the reasonable
satisfaction of the District. The Parties shall mutually agree on a date by which such

2332.4700; 8



corrective work must be completed, failing which the Application shall be deemed
terminated. In such event, WCD may submit a new Application to initiate the acceptance
process anew. Within 30 days after the corrective work has been completed, the Engineer
and WCD shall jointly inspect the Public Infrastructure that was found to be defective, and
upon a determination by the District that the corrective work is satisfactory, the District
Engineer shall issue a new District Inspection Report for such Public Infrastructure.

d. The District and WCD agree and acknowledge that, in the event that the
District Engineer determines that the District Public Infrastructure, was completed in a
manner that makes direct inspection of such District Public Infrastructure by the District
Engineer (and issuance of the District Inspection Report) impossible or infeasible, then
WCD shall be required to obtain and issue to the District a Design Engineer’s Certification.

3.4. Application Review Procedures - Eligible Capital Services Costs. Upon receipt
of an Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs — Capital Services Costs using the form
attached hereto as Exhibit C, the District shall promptly direct the District Accountant to review
the invoices and other material presented to substantiate the District Eligible Costs and to issue an
Accountant’s Service Cost Certification. WCD shall have a reasonable opportunity to dispute the
conclusions set forth in the Accountant’s Service Cost Certification, and the Parties shall attempt
to resolve any such dispute in good faith. In the event the Parties are not able to resolve such
disputes within 30 days of the date of the Accountant’s Service Cost Certification, the Parties shall
submit the dispute to a Third-Party Accounting Firm, whose findings shall be binding on the
Parties. In such event, the fees and expenses of the Third-Party Accounting Firm shall be split
equally between the Parties.

3.5 Documentary Requirements in Exhibit Schedules. WCD acknowledges that the
Exhibits contain additional documentary requirements that must be met, unless modified or waived
by the District, as a condition to the adoption of any District Acceptance Resolution and agrees to
satisfy same.

ARTICLE 4
DISTRICT ACCEPTANCE

4.1. District Acceptance Resolution. The Parties agree that no reimbursement shall
be required under this Agreement unless and until the District has adopted a District Acceptance
Resolution. Upon completion of the applicable Application Review Procedures described in
Article IIT hereof, the District shall accept the District Eligible Costs and (if applicable) acquisition
of the District Public Infrastructure within a reasonable time thereafter, not to exceed 60 days.
Such acceptance shall be evidenced by the District adopting a District Acceptance Resolution and
thereupon the District Eligible Costs so accepted shall become Certified District Eligible Costs.
The District Acceptance Resolution shall declare the satisfaction of the requirements of this
Agreement, subject to any waivers or modifications of specific requirements as the District may,

2332.4700; 9



in its sole discretion, approve. The District Acceptance Resolution shall also address the means
by which reimbursement is to occur, as contemplated in Section 5.1.

4.2 Reimbursement Subject to Availability of Funds. The obligation of the District
to reimburse WCD following adoption of an Acceptance Resolution shall be subject to availability
of funds, and as otherwise provided in Section 5.1.

ARTICLE §
PAYMENT OF CERTIFIED DISTRICT ELIGIBLE COSTS

5.1.  Payment of Certified District Eligible Costs. In connection with the adoption of
a District Acceptance Resolution and satisfaction of any conditions to reimbursement as may be
set forth in this Agreement, the District shall tender to WCD, or any other entity as directed by
WCD, the amount of the Certified District Eligible Costs from the sources identified below in the
following order of priority (unless otherwise agreed to by WCD):

a. First, from the proceeds of Bonds (whether available at the time of adoption
of a District Acceptance Resolution or at any time thereafter), in which case, within three
(3) business days of adoption of a District Acceptance Resolution, the District shall make
a requisition in the amount of the Certified District Eligible Costs from any project fund
held by the bond trustee (or such lesser amount as may then be available in the project
fund), which requisition shall direct that the bond trustee make payment of the applicable
amount directly to WCD. To the extent Bond proceeds are not available within three (3)
business days of adoption of a District Acceptance Resolution, but subsequently become
available upon a future Bond issuance, payment of Certified District Eligible Costs shall
be made at closing, with such funds being issued directly to WCD.

b. Second, from such funds as the District determines, in its sole and absolute
discretion, to be available; and/or

c. Third, through the issuance of one or more Reimbursement Obligations.

5.2 Limitation on Payment Source for Dedicated Improvements not Conditionally
Accepted. Notwithstanding the foregoing, and subject to the provisions of Section 3.1.d,
reimbursement for Dedicated Public Infrastructure in advance of conditional acceptance by the
applicable governmental entity shall be limited to proceeds from the issuance of Bonds available
at the time of adoption of an Acceptance Resolution with respect to such Public Infrastructure.

5.3. Interest Prior to Issuance of Reimbursement Obligations. With respect to
Certified District Eligible Costs recognized prior to the issuance of any Reimbursement
Obligation, simple interest with no compounding shall accrue on unpaid Certified District Eligible
Costs at [OPTION 1: the MMD Interest Rate] [OPTION 2: the RMA Rate] [OPTION 3: the
lower of MMD Interest Rate or RMA Rate] (the “Interest Rate”).  INTEREST ADJUSTMENT

2332.4700; 10



OPTION: Such Interest Rate shall adjust on a [quarterly OR annual OR ] basis.
[NOTE: Whether the interest rate is fixed in perpetuity upon adoption of the Acceptance
Resolution or is subject to adjustments on some periodic basis. This to be determined by the
Board.]]

Such interest shall accrue from the date of adoption of such District Acceptance Resolution
to the earlier of the date Reimbursement Obligation is issued to evidence the Certified District
Eligible Costs, or the date of repayment in full of the applicable Certified District Eligible Costs.

5.4. Issuance of Reimbursement Obligations. Subject to any limitations or
restrictions contained in any loan or bond documents or other multi-fiscal-year instruments, the
Service Plan, the District’s electoral authorization, and the conditions of this Section, upon request
of WCD, the District hereby agrees to issue to or at the direction of WCD one or more
Reimbursement Obligations to evidence any repayment obligation of the District then existing
with respect to Certified District Eligible Costs, and interest accrued, under this Agreement. Such
Reimbursement Obligations shall be payable solely from the sources identified in the
Reimbursement Obligations, including, but not limited to, ad valorem property tax revenues of the
District, and shall be secured by the District’s pledge to apply such revenues as required
thereunder, unless otherwise consented to by WCD. Such Reimbursement Obligations shall
mature on a date or dates, subject to the limitations in this Agreement, and bear interest at a market
rate, to be determined at the time of issuance of such Reimbursement Obligations, subject to
compliance with the provisions of § 32-1-1101(7), C.R.S.

a. The issuance of any Reimbursement Obligations shall be subject to the
availability of an exemption (if required) from the registration requirements of § 11-59-
106, C.R.S., and shall be subject to such prior filings with the Colorado State Securities
Commissioner as may be necessary to claim such exemption, in accordance with § 11-59-
110, C.R.S., and any regulations promulgated thereunder.

b. In connection with the issuance of any such Reimbursement Obligation, the
District shall make such filings as it may be deem necessary to comply with the provisions
of § 32-1-1604, C.R.S., as amended.

c. To the extent such Reimbursement Obligations may be issued as tax-exempt
obligations, and upon the request of WCD, such obligations shall be issued with a tax-
exempt opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel.

d. The District shall bear the costs of issuance of the Reimbursement
Obligations.
e. The terms of this Agreement may be used to construe the intent of the

Parties in connection with issuance of any Reimbursement Obligations and shall be read
as nearly as possible to make the provisions of any Reimbursement Obligations and this
Agreement fully effective. Should any irreconcilable conflict arise between the terms of
this Agreement and the terms of any Reimbursement Obligations, the terms of such
Reimbursement Obligations shall prevail.

2332.4700; 11



ARTICLE 6
TERMINATION

6.1. Termination of Obligation to Reimburse.

a. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, this
Agreement and the District’s obligation to reimburse WCD for any and all Certified
District Eligible Costs not converted to Reimbursement Obligations shall terminate
automatically and be of no further force or effect upon the occurrence of: (i) WCD’s
voluntary dissolution, liquidation and winding up; (ii) administrative dissolution (or other
legal process not initiated by WCD, dissolving WCD as a legal entity) that is not remedied
or cured within 60 days of the effective date of such dissolution or other process; or (iii)
the initiation of bankruptcy, receivership or similar process or actions with regard to WCD
(whether voluntary or involuntary). The termination of this Agreement and the District’s
reimbursement obligations set forth herein shall be absolute and binding upon WCD and
its successors and assigns. WCD, by its execution of this Agreement, waives and releases
any and all claims and rights, whether existing now or in the future, against the District
relating to or arising out of the District’s reimbursement obligations under this Agreement,
in the event that any of the occurrences described in this Subsection occur.

b. Furthermore, this Agreement and the District’s obligations under this
Agreement to reimburse WCD shall terminate at the earlier of the repayment in full of the
Certified District Eligible Costs or at the expiration of the Maximum Repayment Term.
The Parties hereby agree and acknowledge that, upon the termination date set forth in the
preceding sentence, any obligation of the District to reimburse WCD for amounts due and
outstanding under this Agreement, including accrued interest, shall be forgiven in its
entirety, generally and unconditionally released, waived, acquitted, and forever discharged,
and shall be deemed a contribution to the District by WCD and there shall be no further
obligation of the District to pay or reimburse WCD with respect to such amounts. This
limitation shall not apply to Reimbursement Obligations, which shall mature in accordance
with their terms.

ARTICLE 7
MISCELLANEOUS

7.1.  Annual Appropriation/No Multiple Fiscal Year Financial Obligation. The
obligation to pay Certified District Eligible Costs due to WCD pursuant to this Agreement (except
to the extent converted into Reimbursement Obligations) shall not constitute a debt or indebtedness
of the District within the meaning of the Colorado Constitution, and the payment of such amounts
shall be subject to annual appropriation by the District. The District shall consider such
appropriations in good faith considering the benefits provided hereunder, at the time of adoption
of its annual budget. WCD expressly understands and agrees that the District’s obligations under
this Agreement shall extend only to monies appropriated for the purposes of this Agreement by
the District’s Board and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement, or liability in any

2332.4700; 12



ensuing fiscal year beyond the then-current fiscal year. By acceptance of this Agreement, WCD
agrees and consents to all of the limitations with respect of the payment of amounts due under
this Agreement.

7.2.  Default/Remedies. In the event of a breach or default of this Agreement by any
Party, the non-defaulting Party, after having given notice to the other Party and a 30-day period to
cure said breach or default, shall be entitled to exercise all remedies available at law or in equity.
In the event of any litigation, arbitration, or other proceeding to enforce the terms, covenants or
conditions hereof, the prevailing Party in such proceeding shall obtain as part of its judgment or
award its reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert witness fees, and court costs.

7.3. Time Is of the Essence/Modification of Performance Dates. Time is of the
essence hereof; provided, however, that if the last day permitted or otherwise determined for the
performance of any required act under this Agreement falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal
holiday, the time for performance shall be extended to the next succeeding business day, unless
otherwise expressly stated. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any date specified for completion of
any required act by either Party hereunder may be modified upon the mutual agreement of the
Parties.

7.4. Indemnification. WCD hereby agrees to indemnify and save harmless the District
from all claims and/or causes of action, including but not limited to mechanic’s liens, arising out
of the fraudulent misrepresentation or misstatement in connection with WCD’s performance of its
obligations hereunder.

7.5. Notices. All notices, demands, and communications (collectively, “Notices”)
under this Agreement shall be delivered or sent, addressed to the address of the intended recipient
set forth below or such other address as a Party may designate by notice pursuant to this Section,
by: (a) first class, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, (b)
nationally recognized overnight carrier, or (c) sent by confirmed facsimile transmission or email.
Notices shall be deemed given either one business day after delivery to the overnight carrier, three
days after being mailed as provided in clause (a) or (b) above, or upon confirmed delivery as
provided in clause (c) above.

To the District: Waterview North Metropolitan District No.
c/o White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron
2154 E. Commons Avenue, Suite 2000
Centennial, Colorado 80122
Attention: Blair M. Dickhoner, Esq.
(303) 858-1800
bdickhoner@wbapc.com

To WCD: Waterview Commercial Developers, Inc.

Attention: Heath Herber

2332.4700; 13


mailto:bdickhoner@wbapc.com

hherber@wheatlandscapital.com

7.6. Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended or modified by a writing
executed by the Parties.

7.7.  Severability. If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of
competent jurisdiction to be illegal, void, or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the
validity of any remaining portion of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect.
In addition, in lieu of such illegal, void, or unenforceable provision, there shall automatically be
added as part of this Agreement a provision similar in terms to such illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable provision so that the resulting reformed provision is legal, valid, and enforceable.

7.8.  Governing Law/Venue. This Agreement and all claims or controversies arising
out of or relating to this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the law of
the State of Colorado, without regard to conflict of law principles that would result in the
application of any law other than the law of the State of Colorado. Venue for all actions arising
from this Agreement shall be in the District Court in and for the county in which the District is
located.

7.9. No Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by either Party and any
attempt to do so shall be null and void.

7.10. Authority. By execution hereof, the District and WCD represent and warrant that
their representative signing hereunder has full power and lawful authority to execute this
Agreement and to bind the respective Party to the terms hereof.

7.11. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes and represents the entire,
integrated agreement between the Parties with respect to the matters set forth herein, and hereby
supersedes any and all prior negotiations, representations, agreements or arrangements of any kind
with respect to those matters, whether written or oral. This Agreement shall become effective
upon the date set forth above.

7.12. Inurement. The terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the Parties as well as their respective successors.

7.13. Legal Existence. The District will maintain its legal identity and existence so long
as any of the advanced amounts contemplated herein remain outstanding. The foregoing statement
shall apply unless, by operation of law, another legal entity succeeds to the liabilities and rights of
the District without materially adversely affecting WCD’s privileges and rights under this
Agreement.

7.14.  Governmental Immunity. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to waive,
limit, or otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be available
by law to the District, its respective officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any other person
acting on behalf of the District and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or available to
the District pursuant to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §§ 24-10-101, et seq., C.R.S.

2332.4700; 14


mailto:hherber@wheatlandscapital.com

7.15. Negotiated Provisions. This Agreement shall not be construed more strictly
against one Party than against the other merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been prepared
by counsel for one of the Parties, it being acknowledged that each Party has contributed
substantially and materially to the preparation of this Agreement.

7.16. Parties Interested /No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing expressed or implied
in this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or to give to, any person other
than the Parties any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any
covenants, terms, conditions, or provisions thereof, and all the covenants, terms, conditions, and
provisions in this Agreement by and on behalf of the Parties shall be for the sole and exclusive
benefit of the Parties. It is expressly understood and agreed that enforcement of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, and all rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be strictly
reserved to the Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall give or allow any such claim
or right of action by any other third parties. It is the express intention of the Parties that any person
other than the Parties receiving services or benefits under this Agreement shall be deemed to be
an incidental beneficiary only.

7.17. Electronic Storage and Execution. The Parties agree that the transactions
described herein may be conducted and related documents may be signed and stored by electronic
means. Copies, telecopies, facsimiles, electronic files and other reproductions of electronically
signed and stored documents shall be deemed to be authentic and valid counterparts of such
original documents for all purposes, including the filing of any claim, action or suit in the
appropriate court of law. Without limiting the foregoing, the Parties agree that in the event that
any individual or individuals who are authorized to execute or consent to this Agreement on behalf
of the District or WCD are not able to be physically present to manually sign this Agreement or
any amendments or consents thereto, that such individual or individuals are hereby authorized to
execute the same electronically via an electronic signature. Any electronic signature so affixed to
this Agreement or any amendments or consents thereto shall carry the full legal force and effect of
any original, handwritten signature.

7.18. Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute
one and the same instrument.

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank. Signature page follows.]

2332.4700; 15



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date
and year first above written. By the signature of its representative below, each Party affirms that
it has taken all necessary action to authorize said representative to execute this Agreement.

Attest:

By:

DISTRICT:

WATERVIEW NORTH METROPOLITAN
DISTRICT NO. _, a quasi-municipal
corporation and political subdivision of the State
of Colorado

By:

Officer of the District

Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON

General Counsel to the District

2332.4700;

WCD:

WATERVIEW COMMERCIAL DEVELOPERS,
INC., a Colorado corporation

By:

16

Printed Name

Title



EXHIBIT A

Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs
Dedicated Public Infrastructure

Applicant Name:

Applicant Address:

State: Zip: Daytime Phone #:

Alt. Phone / Cell:

Email:

Please complete the table below and attach the materials specified in Schedule 1 hereto:

Category Entity that will own, Final, preliminary or conditional Proposed
operate, and/or maintain acceptance by the applicable District
the Public Infrastructure governmental entity (Yes/No) | Eligible Costs

Street

Parks and
Recreation

Water

Sanitation/Storm
Sewer

Transportation

Mosquito

Safety Protection

Fire Protection

Television Relay
and Translation

Security

By its signature below, the Applicant certifies that this Application for Acceptance of District
Eligible Costs - Dedicated Public Infrastructure and all documents submitted in support of this
application are true and correct, that the Applicant is authorized to sign this application, and that
the costs submitted for reimbursement herein qualify as District Eligible Costs in accordance with
the Infrastructure Acquisition and Reimbursement Agreement.

Signature:

Date:

A-1
2332.4700;



Schedule 1
Documentary Requirements

In addition to the requirements set forth in Article 3 of the Infrastructure Acquisition and
Reimbursement Agreement, the following documentary requirements apply in connection with the
Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs — Dedicated Public Infrastructure, per
Exhibit A:

Requirements applicable to Dedicated Public Infrastructure that has been finally accepted
by the applicable governmental entity

1. Contracts and approved change orders;

2. Copies of all invoices, statements, and evidence of payment thereof equal to the
proposed District Eligible Costs;

3. A letter from the governmental entity to which the Public Infrastructure is being
dedicated evidencing the governmental entity’s final acceptance of such Public Infrastructure; and

4. Such information as the District Engineer and District Accountant may determine
is necessary in order for such entities to provide the certifications set forth in Section 3.2 of this
Agreement.

Requirements applicable to Dedicated Public Infrastructure that has been conditionally
accepted by the applicable governmental entity

1 Contracts and approved change orders;

2. Copies of all invoices, statements, and evidence of payment thereof equal to the
proposed District Eligible Costs;

3. A letter from the governmental entity to which the Public Infrastructure is being
dedicated evidencing the governmental entity’s conditional acceptance of such Public
Infrastructure;

4. Submission of a letter agreement in form and substance satisfactory to the District
addressing: (a) WCD’s obligation to undertake all steps necessary to achieve final acceptance of
the Public Infrastructure by the appropriate governmental entity, and (b) to the extent not otherwise
performed by the governmental entity having conditionally accepted such Public Infrastructure,
WCD’s obligation to maintain such Public Infrastructure until final acceptance thereof by the
applicable governmental entity; and

A-2
2332.4700;



5. Such information as the District Engineer and District Accountant may determine
is necessary in order for such entities to provide the certifications set forth in Section 3.2 of this
Agreement.

Requirements applicable to Dedicated Public Infrastructure that has not received
conditional acceptance from the applicable sovernmental entity

An Application for Acceptance for Dedicated Public Infrastructure that has not received
conditional acceptance from the applicable governmental entity shall only be accepted: if (a) the
District has proceeds available to fund the full amount thereof from the issuance of Bonds, and (b)
the District agrees to accept such Application.

For Public Infrastructure that is to be dedicated to another governmental entity in advance
of conditional acceptance, WCD shall satisfy the following additional documentary requirements:

1. Construction drawings.

2. Copies of all invoices, statements and evidence of payment thereof equal to the
proposed District Eligible Costs, including lien waivers from any suppliers and subcontractors. In
the alternative with respect to lien waivers, upon the request of WCD, and subject to the District’s
agreement thereto (in its sole discretion), WCD may provide an indemnification agreement in form
and substance acceptable to the District (which may include provisions for security) whereby
WCD agrees to indemnify the District for any mechanic or materialman’s liens from suppliers and
subcontractors;

3. A letter agreement in form and substance satisfactory to the District establishing:
(a) WCD’s obligation to undertake all steps necessary to achieve dedication to and final acceptance
of the Public Infrastructure by the appropriate governmental entity and, (b) WCD’s obligation to
maintain such Public Infrastructure until final acceptance thereof by the applicable governmental
entity;

4. Evidence satisfactory to the District that any and all real property interests necessary
for the use and occupancy of the Public Infrastructure have been granted either to the District or to
the governmental entity accepting such Public Infrastructure; or, in the discretion of the District,
assurances acceptable to the District that WCD will execute or cause to be executed such instruments
as shall satisfy this requirement;

5. An executed Bill of Sale in form and substance acceptable to the District conveying
the Public Infrastructure to the District, which Bill of Sale shall provide for its automatic
termination upon final acceptance of the Public Infrastructure by the appropriate governmental
entity.;

6. A license agreement or equivalent document from the jurisdiction to which the Public
Infrastructure are to be dedicated, authorizing the District to enter onto public right-of-way to conduct
any maintenance in the event WCD fails to do so.

A-3
2332.4700;



7. Such information as the District Engineer and District Accountant may determine
is necessary in order for such entities to provide the certifications set forth in Section 3.2 of the
Infrastructure Acquisition and Reimbursement Agreement;

8. When ultimately produced, a complete set of digital record drawings of the Public
Infrastructure which is certified by a professional engineer registered in the State of Colorado or a
licensed land surveyor, showing accurate dimensions and location of all Public Infrastructure.
Such drawings shall be in form and content reasonably acceptable to the District;

0. Any operation and maintenance manuals, if available, and otherwise a commitment
to provide when available;

10. Evidence that any underground facilities are electronically locatable (if applicable);

11. Test results for improvements conforming to industry standards (compaction test
results, concrete tickets, hardscape test results, cut-sheets, etc.) (if applicable); and

12.  Pressure test results for any irrigation system (if applicable).

The District mays, in its sole discretion, retain up to 10% of the Certified District Eligible
Costs otherwise being paid for Public Infrastructure that is being reimbursed in this fashion and
may require security in such amount as the District may reasonable determine is necessary pending
preliminary, conditional, or final acceptance.

A4
2332.4700;



Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs
District Public Infrastructure

Applicant Name:

EXHIBIT B

Applicant Address:

State:

Alt. Phone / Cell:

Daytime Phone #:

Email:

Please complete the table below and attach the materials specified in Schedule 1 hereto:

Category

Public Infrastructure located within public
property, easements or public ROW
(please specity)

Proposed District
Eligible Costs

Street

Parks and Recreation

Water

Sanitation/Storm Sewer

Transportation

Mosquito

Safety Protection

Fire Protection

Television Relay and
Translation

Security

By its signature below, the Applicant certifies that this Application for Acceptance of District
Eligible Costs - District Public Infrastructure by the District and all documents submitted in
support of this application are true and correct, that the Applicant is authorized to sign this
application, and that the costs submitted for reimbursement herein qualify as District Eligible

Costs in accordance with the Infrastructure Acquisition and Reimbursement Agreement.

Signature:

Date:

2332.4700;

B-1




Schedule 1
Documentary Requirements

In addition to the requirements set forth in Section 3.3 of the Infrastructure Acquisition and
Reimbursement, the following documentary requirements apply in connection with the
Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs — District Public Infrastructure, per Exhibit
B:

I. Construction drawings;
2. Contracts and approved change orders;
3. Copies of all invoices, statements and evidence of payment thereof equal to the

proposed District Eligible Costs, including lien waivers from any suppliers and subcontractors. In
the alternative with respect to lien waivers, upon the request of WCD, and subject to the District’s
agreement thereto (in its sole discretion), WCD may provide an indemnification agreement in form
and substance acceptable to the District (which may include provisions for security) whereby
WCD agrees to indemnify the District for any mechanic or materialman’s liens from suppliers and
subcontractors;

4. Evidence satisfactory to the District that any and all real property interests necessary
to permit the District’s use and occupancy of the Public Infrastructure have been granted, or, in the
discretion of the District, assurances acceptable to the District that WCD will execute or cause to be
executed such instruments as shall satisfy this requirement;

5. A complete set of digital record drawings of the Public Infrastructure which are
certified by a professional engineer registered in the State of Colorado or a licensed land surveyor,
showing accurate dimensions and location of all District Public Infrastructure. Such drawings
shall be in form and content reasonably acceptable to the District;

6. Such information as the District Engineer and Districts Accountant may determine
is necessary in order for such entities to provide the certifications set forth in Section 3.2 of the
Agreement;

7. Assignment of any warranties or guaranties;
8. A Warranty Agreement, in form and substance acceptable to the District, providing

that WCD will immediately correct or replace any Public Infrastructure that is defective to the
reasonable satisfaction of the District at WCD’s sole expense for a period of one (1) year;

9. Any operation and maintenance manuals;
10. Evidence that any underground facilities are electronically locatable (if applicable);
B-2

2332.4700;



11. Approved landscape plan and certification by a landscape architect or engineer that
all landscape improvements were installed in accordance with the approved landscape plan(s) (if
applicable);

12. Test results for improvements conforming to industry standards (compaction test
results, concrete tickets, hardscape test results, cut-sheets, etc.) (if applicable);

13.  Pressure test results for any irrigation system (if applicable);

14. Such information as the District may require in order to insure the Public
Infrastructure;

15.  An executed Bill of Sale for the Public Infrastructure in form and substance

acceptable to the District; and

16.  If the District is to assume ownership of any real property, a title commitment and
form of Special Warranty Deed, in a form acceptable to the District, conveying the real property
free and clear of all liens, claims and other encumbrances, except matters of record acceptable to
the District.

2332.4700;



EXHIBIT C

Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs
Capital Services Costs

Applicant Name:

Applicant Address:

State: Zip: Daytime Phone #:

Alt. Phone / Cell:

Email:

Description of the nature of the Eligible Service Costs and the relation to Public
Infrastructure, as applicable:

Category Proposed District
Eligible Costs

Organizational
Costs

Street

Parks and
Recreation
Water
Sanitation/Storm
Sewer
Transportation
Mosquito
Safety
Protection
Fire Protection
Television
Relay and
Translation
Security

By its signature below, the Applicant certifies that this Application for Acceptance of Eligible
Service Costs and all documents submitted in support of this application are true and correct, that
the Applicant is authorized to sign this application, and that the costs submitted for reimbursement
herein qualify as District Eligible Costs in accordance with the Infrastructure Acquisition and
Reimbursement Agreement.

Signature:

Date:

C-1
2332.4700;



Schedule 1
Documentary Requirements

In addition to the requirements set forth in Section 3.4 of this Agreement, the following
documentary requirements apply in connection with the Application for Acceptance of District
Eligible Costs — Service Costs, per Exhibit C:

1. Copies of all invoices, statements, and evidence of payment thereof equal to the
proposed District Eligible Costs; and

2. Such information as the District Accountant may determine is necessary in order
for such entities to provide the certification set forth in Section 3 of the Infrastructure Acquisition
and Reimbursement Agreement.

C-2
2332.4700;



	AGENDA
	WVNMD 1-24-25 Payables.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	2332.0002_Stmt_38542
	Waterview North MD Invoice_20241231
	Waterview WSDM


	ADP622.tmp
	3.1. Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs.  WCD will initiate a request for the District’s acceptance of District Eligible Costs by submitting the following, as applicable:
	a. For Dedicated Public Infrastructure, a completed “Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs - Dedicated Public Infrastructure” attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference.
	b. For District Public Infrastructure, a completed “Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs - District Public Infrastructure” attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference.
	c. For Eligible Capital Services Costs, a completed “Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs - Capital Services Costs” attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by this reference.
	d.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3.1.a, no Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs – Dedicated Public Infrastructure may be submitted to the extent such Application includes costs for Dedicated Public Infrastructure that has...

	3.2. Common Application Review Procedures - Eligible Public Infrastructure Costs.  After receipt of a complete Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs as provided in Subsections 3.1.a or 3.1.b above, the District shall promptly direct th...
	b. Upon receipt of the Engineer’s Cost Certification, the District shall direct the District Accountant to review the Engineer’s Cost Certification and Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs and issue an Accountant’s Cost Certification....
	3.3. Additional Application Review Procedures - District Public Infrastructure. In addition to the requirements set forth in Section 3.2, upon receipt of an Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs – District Public Infrastructure, the Di...

	a. The District Engineer, or other appropriate consultant engaged by the District according to the nature of the work being inspected, and WCD, or its representative, shall jointly conduct an Inspection of the Public Infrastructure within 30 days of t...
	b. Within 14 days after the Inspection, the District Engineer shall issue a District Inspection Report that addresses the following:
	i. whether the Public Infrastructure has been constructed in substantial accordance with the Construction Drawings;
	ii. whether the Public Infrastructure is fit for its intended purpose; and
	iii. whether any corrective work is necessary before declaring satisfaction of subsections (i) and (ii), in which case the District Inspection Report will include a punch list of such items.
	c. If the District Inspection Report identifies any necessary corrective work, WCD shall be responsible for correcting such work listed on the punch list to the reasonable satisfaction of the District.  The Parties shall mutually agree on a date by wh...
	d. The District and WCD agree and acknowledge that, in the event that the District Engineer determines that the District Public Infrastructure, was completed in a manner that makes direct inspection of such District Public Infrastructure by the Distri...
	3.4. Application Review Procedures - Eligible Capital Services Costs.  Upon receipt of an Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs – Capital Services Costs using the form attached hereto as Exhibit C, the District shall promptly direct th...
	3.5 Documentary Requirements in Exhibit Schedules.  WCD acknowledges that the Exhibits contain additional documentary requirements that must be met, unless modified or waived by the District, as a condition to the adoption of any District Acceptance R...
	4.1. District Acceptance Resolution.  The Parties agree that no reimbursement shall be required under this Agreement unless and until the District has adopted a District Acceptance Resolution.  Upon completion of the applicable Application Review Pro...
	4.2 Reimbursement Subject to Availability of Funds.   The obligation of the District to reimburse WCD following adoption of an Acceptance Resolution shall be subject to availability of funds, and as otherwise provided in Section 5.1.
	5.1. Payment of Certified District Eligible Costs.  In connection with the adoption of a District Acceptance Resolution and satisfaction of any conditions to reimbursement as may be set forth in this Agreement, the District shall tender to WCD, or any...
	a. First, from the proceeds of  Bonds (whether available at the time of adoption of a District Acceptance Resolution or at any time thereafter), in which case, within three (3) business days of adoption of a District Acceptance Resolution, the Distric...
	b. Second, from such funds as the District determines, in its sole and absolute discretion, to be available; and/or
	c. Third, through the issuance of one or more Reimbursement Obligations.
	a. The issuance of any Reimbursement Obligations shall be subject to the availability of an exemption (if required) from the registration requirements of § 11-59-106, C.R.S., and shall be subject to such prior filings with the Colorado State Securitie...
	b. In connection with the issuance of any such Reimbursement Obligation, the District shall make such filings as it may be deem necessary to comply with the provisions of § 32-1-1604, C.R.S., as amended.
	c. To the extent such Reimbursement Obligations may be issued as tax-exempt obligations, and upon the request of WCD, such obligations shall be issued with a tax-exempt opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel.
	d. The District shall bear the costs of issuance of the Reimbursement Obligations.
	e. The terms of this Agreement may be used to construe the intent of the Parties in connection with issuance of any Reimbursement Obligations and shall be read as nearly as possible to make the provisions of any Reimbursement Obligations and this Agre...
	6.1. Termination of Obligation to Reimburse.
	a. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, this Agreement and the District’s obligation to reimburse WCD for any and all Certified District Eligible Costs not converted to Reimbursement Obligations shall terminate automaticall...
	b.  Furthermore, this Agreement and the District’s obligations under this Agreement to reimburse WCD shall terminate at the earlier of the repayment in full of the Certified District Eligible Costs or at the expiration of the Maximum Repayment Term.  ...
	7.1. Annual Appropriation/No Multiple Fiscal Year Financial Obligation. The obligation to pay Certified District Eligible Costs due to WCD pursuant to this Agreement (except to the extent converted into Reimbursement Obligations) shall not constitute ...

	7.2. Default/Remedies.  In the event of a breach or default of this Agreement by any Party, the non-defaulting Party, after having given notice to the other Party and a 30-day period to cure said breach or default, shall be entitled to exercise all re...
	7.5. Notices.  All notices, demands, and communications (collectively, “Notices”) under this Agreement shall be delivered or sent, addressed to the address of the intended recipient set forth below or such other address as a Party may designate by not...
	7.6. Amendments.  This Agreement may only be amended or modified by a writing executed by the Parties.
	7.7. Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, void, or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of any remaining portion of this Agreement, which shall remain i...
	7.8. Governing Law/Venue.  This Agreement and all claims or controversies arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the law of the State of Colorado, without regard to conflict of law principles th...
	7.9. No Assignment.  This Agreement may not be assigned by either Party and any attempt to do so shall be null and void.
	7.10. Authority.  By execution hereof, the District and WCD represent and warrant that their representative signing hereunder has full power and lawful authority to execute this Agreement and to bind the respective Party to the terms hereof.
	7.11. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes and represents the entire, integrated agreement between the Parties with respect to the matters set forth herein, and hereby supersedes any and all prior negotiations, representations, agreements or ...
	7.12. Inurement.  The terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties as well as their respective successors.
	7.14. Governmental Immunity.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to waive, limit, or otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be available by law to the District, its respective officials, employees, contract...
	7.15. Negotiated Provisions.  This Agreement shall not be construed more strictly against one Party than against the other merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been prepared by counsel for one of the Parties, it being acknowledged that each P...
	7.16. Parties Interested /No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or to give to, any person other than the Parties any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason ...
	7.17.   Electronic Storage and Execution.  The Parties agree that the transactions described herein may be conducted and related documents may be signed and stored by electronic means.  Copies, telecopies, facsimiles, electronic files and other repro...
	7.18. Counterpart Execution.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
	[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.  Signature page follows.]
	4. Evidence satisfactory to the District that any and all real property interests necessary for the use and occupancy of the Public Infrastructure have been granted either to the District or to the governmental entity accepting such Public Infrastruc...
	5. An executed Bill of Sale in form and substance acceptable to the District conveying the Public Infrastructure to the District, which Bill of Sale shall provide for its automatic termination upon final acceptance of the Public Infrastructure by the...
	6. A license agreement or equivalent document from the jurisdiction to which the Public Infrastructure are to be dedicated, authorizing the District to enter onto public right-of-way to conduct any maintenance in the event WCD fails to do so.
	7. Such information as the District Engineer and District Accountant may determine is necessary in order for such entities to provide the certifications set forth in Section 3.2 of the Infrastructure Acquisition and Reimbursement Agreement;
	8. When ultimately produced, a complete set of digital record drawings of the Public Infrastructure which is certified by a professional engineer registered in the State of Colorado or a licensed land surveyor, showing accurate dimensions and locatio...
	9. Any operation and maintenance manuals, if available, and otherwise a commitment to provide when available;
	10. Evidence that any underground facilities are electronically locatable (if applicable);
	11. Test results for improvements conforming to industry standards (compaction test results, concrete tickets, hardscape test results, cut-sheets, etc.) (if applicable); and
	12. Pressure test results for any irrigation system (if applicable).
	The District may, in its sole discretion, retain up to 10% of the Certified District Eligible Costs otherwise being paid for Public Infrastructure that is being reimbursed in this fashion and may require security in such amount as the District may re...


	ADP8AC7.tmp
	3.1. Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs.  WCD will initiate a request for the District’s acceptance of District Eligible Costs by submitting the following, as applicable:
	a. For Dedicated Public Infrastructure, a completed “Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs - Dedicated Public Infrastructure” attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference.
	b. For District Public Infrastructure, a completed “Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs - District Public Infrastructure” attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference.
	c. For Eligible Capital Services Costs, a completed “Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs - Capital Services Costs” attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by this reference.
	d.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3.1.a, no Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs – Dedicated Public Infrastructure may be submitted to the extent such Application includes costs for Dedicated Public Infrastructure that has...

	3.2. Common Application Review Procedures - Eligible Public Infrastructure Costs.  After receipt of a complete Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs as provided in Subsections 3.1.a or 3.1.b above, the District shall promptly direct th...
	b. Upon receipt of the Engineer’s Cost Certification, the District shall direct the District Accountant to review the Engineer’s Cost Certification and Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs and issue an Accountant’s Cost Certification....
	3.3. Additional Application Review Procedures - District Public Infrastructure. In addition to the requirements set forth in Section 3.2, upon receipt of an Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs – District Public Infrastructure, the Di...

	a. The District Engineer, or other appropriate consultant engaged by the District according to the nature of the work being inspected, and WCD, or its representative, shall jointly conduct an Inspection of the Public Infrastructure within 30 days of t...
	b. Within 14 days after the Inspection, the District Engineer shall issue a District Inspection Report that addresses the following:
	i. whether the Public Infrastructure has been constructed in substantial accordance with the Construction Drawings;
	ii. whether the Public Infrastructure is fit for its intended purpose; and
	iii. whether any corrective work is necessary before declaring satisfaction of subsections (i) and (ii), in which case the District Inspection Report will include a punch list of such items.
	c. If the District Inspection Report identifies any necessary corrective work, WCD shall be responsible for correcting such work listed on the punch list to the reasonable satisfaction of the District.  The Parties shall mutually agree on a date by wh...
	d. The District and WCD agree and acknowledge that, in the event that the District Engineer determines that the District Public Infrastructure, was completed in a manner that makes direct inspection of such District Public Infrastructure by the Distri...
	3.4. Application Review Procedures - Eligible Capital Services Costs.  Upon receipt of an Application for Acceptance of District Eligible Costs – Capital Services Costs using the form attached hereto as Exhibit C, the District shall promptly direct th...
	3.5 Documentary Requirements in Exhibit Schedules.  WCD acknowledges that the Exhibits contain additional documentary requirements that must be met, unless modified or waived by the District, as a condition to the adoption of any District Acceptance R...
	4.1. District Acceptance Resolution.  The Parties agree that no reimbursement shall be required under this Agreement unless and until the District has adopted a District Acceptance Resolution.  Upon completion of the applicable Application Review Pro...
	4.2 Reimbursement Subject to Availability of Funds.   The obligation of the District to reimburse WCD following adoption of an Acceptance Resolution shall be subject to availability of funds, and as otherwise provided in Section 5.1.
	5.1. Payment of Certified District Eligible Costs.  In connection with the adoption of a District Acceptance Resolution and satisfaction of any conditions to reimbursement as may be set forth in this Agreement, the District shall tender to WCD, or any...
	a. First, from the proceeds of  Bonds (whether available at the time of adoption of a District Acceptance Resolution or at any time thereafter), in which case, within three (3) business days of adoption of a District Acceptance Resolution, the Distric...
	b. Second, from such funds as the District determines, in its sole and absolute discretion, to be available; and/or
	c. Third, through the issuance of one or more Reimbursement Obligations.
	a. The issuance of any Reimbursement Obligations shall be subject to the availability of an exemption (if required) from the registration requirements of § 11-59-106, C.R.S., and shall be subject to such prior filings with the Colorado State Securitie...
	b. In connection with the issuance of any such Reimbursement Obligation, the District shall make such filings as it may be deem necessary to comply with the provisions of § 32-1-1604, C.R.S., as amended.
	c. To the extent such Reimbursement Obligations may be issued as tax-exempt obligations, and upon the request of WCD, such obligations shall be issued with a tax-exempt opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel.
	d. The District shall bear the costs of issuance of the Reimbursement Obligations.
	e. The terms of this Agreement may be used to construe the intent of the Parties in connection with issuance of any Reimbursement Obligations and shall be read as nearly as possible to make the provisions of any Reimbursement Obligations and this Agre...
	6.1. Termination of Obligation to Reimburse.
	a. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, this Agreement and the District’s obligation to reimburse WCD for any and all Certified District Eligible Costs not converted to Reimbursement Obligations shall terminate automaticall...
	b.  Furthermore, this Agreement and the District’s obligations under this Agreement to reimburse WCD shall terminate at the earlier of the repayment in full of the Certified District Eligible Costs or at the expiration of the Maximum Repayment Term.  ...
	7.1. Annual Appropriation/No Multiple Fiscal Year Financial Obligation. The obligation to pay Certified District Eligible Costs due to WCD pursuant to this Agreement (except to the extent converted into Reimbursement Obligations) shall not constitute ...

	7.2. Default/Remedies.  In the event of a breach or default of this Agreement by any Party, the non-defaulting Party, after having given notice to the other Party and a 30-day period to cure said breach or default, shall be entitled to exercise all re...
	7.5. Notices.  All notices, demands, and communications (collectively, “Notices”) under this Agreement shall be delivered or sent, addressed to the address of the intended recipient set forth below or such other address as a Party may designate by not...
	7.6. Amendments.  This Agreement may only be amended or modified by a writing executed by the Parties.
	7.7. Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, void, or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of any remaining portion of this Agreement, which shall remain i...
	7.8. Governing Law/Venue.  This Agreement and all claims or controversies arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the law of the State of Colorado, without regard to conflict of law principles th...
	7.9. No Assignment.  This Agreement may not be assigned by either Party and any attempt to do so shall be null and void.
	7.10. Authority.  By execution hereof, the District and WCD represent and warrant that their representative signing hereunder has full power and lawful authority to execute this Agreement and to bind the respective Party to the terms hereof.
	7.11. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes and represents the entire, integrated agreement between the Parties with respect to the matters set forth herein, and hereby supersedes any and all prior negotiations, representations, agreements or ...
	7.12. Inurement.  The terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties as well as their respective successors.
	7.14. Governmental Immunity.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to waive, limit, or otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be available by law to the District, its respective officials, employees, contract...
	7.15. Negotiated Provisions.  This Agreement shall not be construed more strictly against one Party than against the other merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been prepared by counsel for one of the Parties, it being acknowledged that each P...
	7.16. Parties Interested /No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or to give to, any person other than the Parties any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason ...
	7.17.   Electronic Storage and Execution.  The Parties agree that the transactions described herein may be conducted and related documents may be signed and stored by electronic means.  Copies, telecopies, facsimiles, electronic files and other repro...
	7.18. Counterpart Execution.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
	[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.  Signature page follows.]
	4. Evidence satisfactory to the District that any and all real property interests necessary for the use and occupancy of the Public Infrastructure have been granted either to the District or to the governmental entity accepting such Public Infrastruc...
	5. An executed Bill of Sale in form and substance acceptable to the District conveying the Public Infrastructure to the District, which Bill of Sale shall provide for its automatic termination upon final acceptance of the Public Infrastructure by the...
	6. A license agreement or equivalent document from the jurisdiction to which the Public Infrastructure are to be dedicated, authorizing the District to enter onto public right-of-way to conduct any maintenance in the event WCD fails to do so.
	7. Such information as the District Engineer and District Accountant may determine is necessary in order for such entities to provide the certifications set forth in Section 3.2 of the Infrastructure Acquisition and Reimbursement Agreement;
	8. When ultimately produced, a complete set of digital record drawings of the Public Infrastructure which is certified by a professional engineer registered in the State of Colorado or a licensed land surveyor, showing accurate dimensions and locatio...
	9. Any operation and maintenance manuals, if available, and otherwise a commitment to provide when available;
	10. Evidence that any underground facilities are electronically locatable (if applicable);
	11. Test results for improvements conforming to industry standards (compaction test results, concrete tickets, hardscape test results, cut-sheets, etc.) (if applicable); and
	12. Pressure test results for any irrigation system (if applicable).
	The District may, in its sole discretion, retain up to 10% of the Certified District Eligible Costs otherwise being paid for Public Infrastructure that is being reimbursed in this fashion and may require security in such amount as the District may re...





